
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS: NIAGARA FALLS HERITAGE GATEWAYS 

Addendum 1 
Release Date: July 28, 2022 

1. QUESTIONS & ANSWERS

The following is a list of responses to questions submitted by prospective respondents (“Respondents”).  
Please note that this is the first round of questions and answers. If warranted, another addendum will be 
issued after the official question deadline on August 2, 2022.

No. Question Answer 

1 Are there any sustainability or 
certification targets to be aware of? 

No, there are no targets set but we would like to pursue any 
strategies that will increase the resilience of the final designs 
while minimizing maintenance needs. 

2 What is the budget for professional 
services and/or construction? 

*** This is a clarification of the responses given on the Pre-
Proposal site tour***  

The starting budget for this work is $10 Million including design 
and construction administration services. We realize this is a 
very limited budget for the scope of work—especially if we want 
to explore things like unearthing sections of the canal or building 
a signature structure on the Gorge Gateway site. We are open to 
exploring designs that exceed this budget during the concept 
design process. This may mean some difficult choices will need 
to be made or—If the need is compelling enough—we may be 
able to use the concept design deliverables to request additional 
funding.    

3 

Has funding for the project already 
been secured? What are the 
expected sources of funding, and is 
public fundraising anticipated? 

$10 Million has been secured from Empire State Development, 
any additional costs would have to be raised.  

4 Is design work required for the RFP 
submission? 

Yes. We would like to see some preliminary drawings and/or 
renderings that illustrate your approach on each site. 

5 
Are there any target dates or 
milestones for the various tasks, or a 
targeted completion date? 

We do not have any targets at this point, but we would like to 
see the work completed as quickly as possible.  
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6 Do you know the condition of the soil 
on the Canal Site? 

Six inches of clean topsoil was added when the previous 
structure on the site was demolished.  The soil conforms to 
NYSDOT Specification Section 713-01 for lawn topsoil. The soil 
testing report can be found in Addendum #2. Additionally, Phase 
I and Phase II Environmental Site Investigations were performed 
when the properties were purchased. These can be found in 
Appendix G of the RFP. 

7 

Can the designs on the Gorge 
Gateway site use of the higher land 
that is targeted for future 
development? 

Yes. The land on the lower portion of the site is technically 
owned by the City of Niagara Falls (whom will be a partner in 
this project), but the land on the upper portion is owned by 
USAN. Since USAN owns this land we are open to encroaching on 
upper portion if it serves the project and does not detract from 
the future development potential on the site.  

8 How will State Parks be involved in 
the process? 

Niagara Falls State Parks staff will be an important stakeholder 
in this project. They will be reviewing proposals with us and will 
be involved all the way through the construction of the project.   

9 
Can public access paths be created 
through the sites to access the new 
improvements? 

Yes, all the improvements and any necessary walkways/access 
points will be preserved as public access easements when the 
land is transferred to private sector partners and new 
developments are constructed. Designers should consider the 
placement of future buildings when proposing any 
walkways/access points so the designs do not detract from the 
development potential of the sites. 

10 Can trees be removed to building the 
observation deck at 305 Buffalo Ave? 

Probably. We will work with staff from Niagara Falls State Parks 
to determine what vegetation can be removed. State Park 
officials were involved in the formulation of our Downtown 
Development Strategy and the observation deck concept so it 
will not be a surprise to them. For the purposes of the proposal 
it is safe to assume that any tree on the bank between USAN 
and State Park land can be removed.  
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2. PRE-PROPOSAL TOUR SIGN-IN SHEET
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